
WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 

MONDAY, JUNE 14, 2021 - 7:00 PM 

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

(LIMITED IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE AND ELECTRONIC MEETING VIA ZOOM) 

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. INVOCATION.

III. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE.

IV. WELCOME.

V. APPROVAL OF AGENDA.

VI. PROCLAMATIONS:

1. Flag Day June 14, 2021.
2. Father’s Day June 20, 2021.
3. Boys and Girls Club Week June 21-25, 2021.

VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS:

1. Kenneth Smith Property (Brookstone, Phase 2) – Rezoning Request (Parcel 70650).

VIII. PUBLIC COMMENT: The Public Comment period of thirty minutes provides an opportunity for
residents to comment on any item included in the agenda or to address the Town Council on
any other matter related to the Town of Winterville. For an item included in the Public Hearing
section of the agenda, residents should address the Council at the time the Mayor invites public
comment on the item. No public comment may be made to the Council during the meeting,
except during the Public Comment period or as part of a Public Hearing. Individual speakers are
limited to a maximum of three minutes, and no more than three speakers may address the
Council on a single matter. The Town Council may elect to take no action on the matter
addressed by a speaker, may schedule the matter for further consideration at a future Council
meeting, or may refer the matter to Town staff for disposition. Copies of the Town Public
Comment Policy are available in the rear of the Assembly Room.

IX. CONSENT AGENDA: The following items are considered routine in nature and will not be
discussed by the Town Council unless a Councilman or citizen requests that an item be
removed from the Consent Agenda for further discussion. The Mayor may allow citizens to
address an item or ask questions.

1. Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes:
➢ May 10, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes.

2. Cancellation of Deed of Trust from Lina Green to Winterville CDBG Program.

3. Cancellation of Deed of Trust from Paul Lynch to Winterville CDBG Program.

4. Schedule the Public Hearing for Rezoning Request of Carroll Crossing, Section 3 – (Parcel
04819) for August 9, 2021.

5. Approval of Budget Amendment 2020-2021-4.



X. OLD BUSINESS.

XI. NEW BUSINESS:

1. 2021-2022 Fiscal Year Budget Ordinance.

2. Board of Adjustment Appointments.

3. Recreation Advisory Board Appointments.

4. American Rescue Plan Discussion/Direction.

XII. OTHER AGENDA ITEMS.

XIII. ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDAS/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS.

XIV. REPORTS FROM DEPARTMENT HEADS.

XV. ANNOUNCEMENTS:

1. Rescheduled Touch-A-Truck: Thursday, June 17, 2021 from 4:00 pm until 8:00 pm at
Winterville Square. 252 Main Street.

2. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, June 21, 2021 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall
Assembly Room. (Limited In-Person Attendance and Electronic via ZOOM).

3. Recreation Advisory Board: Tuesday, June 22, 2021 @ 6:30 pm – Operation Center.

4. Happy Birthday, USA! Thursday, July 1, 2021 from 4:00 pm until 8:00 pm at Winterville
Square. 252 Main Street.

5. Town Offices Closed: Monday, July 5, 2021 for the Independence Day (Observed).

6. No Regular Town Council Meeting: Monday, July 12, 2021.

7. Back to School Splash & National Night Out: Tuesday, August 3, 2021 from 4:00 pm until
8:00 pm at Winterville Square. 252 Main Street.

XVI. REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN
MANAGER.

XVII. ADJOURN.

SPECIAL NOTICE: Anyone who needs an interpreter or special accommodations to participate in the 
meeting should notify the Town Clerk, Don Harvey at (252) 215-2344 at least forty-eight (48) hours 
prior to the meeting. (Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 1991.) 

2



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Proclamations 

 

Meeting Date: June 14, 2021 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Proclamations - June 2021. 

Action Requested: None. 

Attachment: Proclamations. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 6/7/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/8/2021 ☒ TM: 6/10/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/10/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

Summary of the attached Proclamations: 

1. Flag Day – June 14, 2021 – to encourage all Americans to observe this day and we pledge our 

allegiance to the banner that has served as a guiding symbol on our Nation's journey, and we celebrate 

the hope it inspires in the American people. 

2. Father’s Day – June 20, 2021 – recognizing the important role fathers play in the American family, and 

we honor them for their strength. love, and commitment. 

3. Boys & Girls Club Week – June 21, 2021 through June 25, 2021 – recognizing organizations that provide 

services to youth to help them reach their full potential. 

 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: NA. 

 

3



PROCLAMATION 
Flag Day June 14, 2021 

WHEREAS, On Flag Day, we pledge our allegiance to the banner that has served as a 

guiding symbol on our Nation's journey, and we celebrate the hope it inspires in the American 

people; and 

WHEREAS, With hands over hearts, Americans of all backgrounds and beliefs have 

long saluted the flag and honored its legacy. Our flag persists as a powerful representation of 

freedom and opportunity. Waving high above buildings, homes, across the globe, and on the 

distant surface of the moon, it calls on each of us to remember our obligations to the Republic 

for which it stands and to carry forward the unwavering optimism that defines us. America 

endures because of the courage of servicemen and women who serve under this standard, 

and our veterans are forever draped in the red, white, and blue when they are laid to rest. 

Wherever the flag lies or flies, its message is clear: We rise and fall together, as one Nation 

and one people; and 

WHEREAS, The American flag invokes pride in our citizens and hope in those who 

come to our shores in search of a brighter tomorrow. In recognition of the ways it has 

embodied our ideals and sustained our Nation, let us pay tribute to the Star Spangled Banner 

and continue striving to create a more perfect and indivisible Union - with liberty and justice for 

all; and 

WHEREAS, To commemorate the adoption of our flag, the Congress, designated June 

14 of each year as "Flag Day" and requested a calling for its observance and for the display of 

the flag of the United States on all government buildings.; and 

THEREFORE, I, Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor of the Town of hereby proclaim June 14, 

2021 as Flag Day and urge all Americans to observe Flag Day by displaying the flag. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be 

affixed this 14th day of June 2021. 

Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 

Attest: 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

4



PROCLAMATION 
Father's Day - June 20, 2021 

WHEREAS, A special bond exists between a father and his children. On Father's Day. 

we recognize the important role fathers play in the American family, and we honor them for 

their strength. love, and commitment. 

WHEREAS, Is an officially proclaimed national observance. 

WHEREAS, Fathers have a duty to love their children with all their hearts and prepare 

them to be independent , compassionate , and responsible citizens. A father's words and 

actions are critical in shaping the character of his children. A father's love helps teach them 

right from wrong, explains lo them the consequences of bad decisions, and strengthens them 

with encouragement. 

WHEREAS, As we honor our fathers on this day, we express our heartfelt appreciation 

for their leadership, support and protection for their children and families. We particularly 

recognize the many fathers who are far from home, serving our Nation and defending the 

cause of freedom around the world. They have answered a great call and live by a code of 

honor and duty that serves as an example for their sons and daughters and for all Americans. 

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor of the Town of Winterville hereby 

proclaim June 20, 2021, as Father's Day and encourage all Americans to express love, 

admiration, and thanks to their fathers for their contributions to our lives and to society. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be 

affixed this 14th day of June 2021. 

Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 

Attest: 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

5



PROCLAMATION 
Boys & Girls Club Week 2021 

WHEREAS, the young people of Winterville are tomorrow’s leaders; and 

WHEREAS, many such young people need professional youth services to help them 

reach their full potential; and 

WHEREAS, the Boys & Girls Club in Winterville, North Carolina provides services to 

more than 590 young people annually; and 

WHEREAS, Boys & Girls Clubs are places where great futures start. They are at the 

forefront of efforts in academic success, healthy lifestyles, and good character and citizenship; 

and 

WHEREAS, Boys & Girls Club organizations in our state help ensure that our young 

people keep off the streets, offering them a safe and supportive place to go and providing them 

with quality programs; and 

WHEREAS, Boys & Girls Clubs of the Coastal Plain will celebrate National Boys & Girls 

Club Week 2021 along with some 3,800 Clubs and more than two million young people 

nationwide.  

NOW, THEREFORE, I, Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor of the Town of Winterville hereby 

proclaim, June 21, 2021 through June 25, 2021 as BOYS & GIRLS CLUB WEEK in 

Winterville, and call on all citizens to join with me in recognizing and commending the Jack 

Minges Boys & Girls Club in Winterville for providing comprehensive, effective services to the 

young people in our communities. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I do set my hand, and cause the seal of Winterville to be 

affixed this 14th day of June 2021. 

Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 

Attest: 

Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

6



Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

Item Section: Public Hearings 

Meeting Date: June 14, 2021 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Kenneth Smith Property (Brookstone, Phase 2) – Rezoning Request (Parcel 70650). 

Action Requested: Public Hearing. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, Notification to Adjacent Property 
Owners, Address Labels, Staff Report, and Ordinance 21-O-061. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 6/2/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/7/2021 ☒ TM: 6/10/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/10/2021

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Kenneth Smith. 

Location: Church Street Ext south of its intersection with Park Road. Phase 2 of Brookstone Subdivision. 

Parcel Number: 70650. 

Site Data: 27.05 acres. 

Current Zoning District: R-15 CUD. 

Proposed Zoning District: R-10. 

❖ Planning and Zoning Board voted to recommend approval (7-1).

❖ Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning request on March 30, 2021.

❖ Notification was posted on the site on March 26, 2021.

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Hold the Public Hearing on the Rezoning Request. 

7



8



9



10



11



2571 Railroad Street                Phone (252)215-2358 
PO Box 1459           Fax (252)756-3109 
Winterville, NC 28590            www.wintervillenc.com 

 
NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 

Town of Winterville 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Town Council will meet on Monday, June 14, 
2021 at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, to hold a Public Hearing 
on the following proposal: 
 
Kenneth Smith Properties, Inc. has submitted a rezoning application to rezone Parcel 70650 (27.05 
Acres) from R-15 CUD to R-10. The R-10 Residential District is a quiet, medium density 
neighborhood consisting of single-family residences along with limited home occupations and private 
and public community uses. 
 
Copies of the Ordinance are on file at the Planning Department Office in the Town Hall or at 
www.wintervillenc.com and are available for public inspection by contacting 
bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or the Winterville Planning Department at (252) 215-2358. 
 
To maintain the safety of Town residents, Town Council, and Town Staff, the Winterville Town 
Council meeting will allow limited in-person attendance due to COVID-19 provisions and the meeting 
will be available electronically. The Agenda is available on the Town website at 
www.wintervillenc.com/agendas. The public is encouraged to watch the Town Council’s meeting live 
on YouTube (www.wintervillenc.com/videos). Those that wish to address the Town Council during the 
Public Hearing should contact the Town Clerk at (252) 215-2344 or via email to 
don.harvey@wintervillenc.com to register by one business day before the meeting at 5:00 pm. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    

 

12

http://www.wintervillenc.com/
mailto:bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com
http://www.wintervillenc.com/agendas
http://www.wintervillenc.com/videos
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


  

Bobby Jefferson Jr & Denise Jefferson 
527 Jimmies Creek Dr  
New Bern NC 28562 

     

Winterville Church of Christ Inc. 
3170 Church Street Ext  
Winterville NC 28590 

     

Harmon Suzanne Brewer 
PO Box 2548 
Greenville NC 27836 

  

  

Brookstone Homeowners 
Association 
3345 Bridge Rd Suite#924  
Suffolk VA 23455 

     

Wayland A Hunsucker  
& Sue Ellen Bridgers 
PO Box 1207  
Winterville NC 28590 

     

Chapel Hill Foundation Real Estate 
Holdings Inc 
300 South Building CN1000 
Chapel Hill NC 27599 

  

  

Bobby Allen & Annie Mae Allen 
3017 Church Street Ext  
Winterville NC 28590 

     

Robert Tugwell & Susan Tugwell 
2436 Trellis Court  
Raleigh NC 27604 

     

Jami L Moss & James L Best 
3124 Streamside Lane  
Winterville NC 28590 

  

  

Odis Willard Joyner & 

 Lottie Nobles Joyner 

3118 Streamside Lane  

Winterville NC 28590      

Yuliya Gorbachova &  
Doyle A Maness  
3112 Streamside Lane 
 Winterville NC 28590 

     

Kenneth W Wilson & Julie D Wilson 
3106 Streamside Lane 
 Winterville NC 28590 

  

  

Judith A Gates 
3100 Streamside Lane  
Winterville NC 28590 

     

John Demotts & Hannah Edson 
3101 Streamside Lane  
Winterville NC 28590 

     

Roman Pawlak & Jin S Kang 
3105 Streamside Lane  
Winterville NC 28590 

  

  

Jonathan H Ambrose 
3109 Streamside Lane  
Winterville NC 28590 

     

Steven M Harvey 
3117 Streamside Lane  
Winterville NC 28590 

     

Donald R King & Sheila K King 

3131 Streamside Lane  

Winterville NC 28590 
  

  

Michael J Reilly & Shirley J Reilly 
3151 Streamside Lane  
Winterville NC 28590 

     

William Johnson & Tracy Johnson 
3159 Streamside Lane  
Winterville NC 28590 

     

Terry Gregory Jenkins 
335 Winding Meadows Lane 
Winterville NC 28590 

  

  

Robert Widener & John Iuliano  
524 Winston Salem Ave  
Virginia Beach VA 23451 

     

Matthew T Gabor 
3132 Streamside Lane  
Winterville NC 28590 

     

Nathan Edwards & Katelyn Barnes 
3138 Streamside Lane  
Winterville NC 28590 

  

  

Andres Rafael Mendez 
3144 Streamside Lane  
Winterville NC 28590 

     

Dandrea Vanessa Walker 
3150 Streamside Lane 
Winterville NC 28590 

     

Zshakedria Brown & James Brown  
3158 Streamside Lane  
Winterville NC 28590 

  

  

Margo T Brown & Clayton Parker 
3168 Streamside Lane 
Winterville NC 28590 

     

Kristina Elizabeth Smith 
3178 Streamside Lane  
Winterville NC 28590 

     

Mercy W Nagi 
3184 Streamside Lane  
Winterville NC 28590 

  
13



  

Russell S Ennis & Sharon L Ennis 
3192 Streamside Lane 
Winterville NC 28590 

     

Mushabbar Karmi & Nazema Karmi 
3196 Streamside Lane  
Winterville NC 28590 

     

Allen Best & Carmen Best 
3198 Streamside Lane  
Winterville NC 28590 

  

  

Erin Miller & Ian Miller 
3185 Streamside Lane  
Winterville NC 28590 

     

Gina Dalpra & Elisha Dalpra 
3179 Streamside Lane  
Winterville NC 28590 

     

Courtney Andrea Barnes 
3169 Streamside Lane  
Winterville NC 28590 

  

  

Lewis Tripp 
Joe Tripp 
2509 Rivertowne Pkwy 
Mount Pleasant, SC 29466 

     

 

     

 

  
 

14



 

1 
Staff Report 

 

 Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT Kenneth Smith Properties, Inc 

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUEST R-15 CUD to R-10   

CONDITIONS n/a 

LOCATION Church Street Extension south of its intersection with Park Road 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 70650 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request on March 30, 2021.  Notification was posted on site on 
March 26, 2021.  36 properties were mailed notification. 
 

TRACT SIZE 27.05 acres 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Partially Cleared / Agricultural; Partially Wooded 

 
 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Agricultural / Vacant 

 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N AR Wooded 

E AR Wooded/Agricultural 

W R-15 Residential 

S R-20/AR Residential/Wooded 

 
 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS  

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

 
ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION 

 
R-15 CUD 

 
R-10 

MAX DENSITY n/a n/a 

 
TYPICAL USES 

Low-density; single-family 
residential; limited home 
occupations. 
 

Medium Density; single-family 
residential; limited home 
occupations. 

 

15



 

2 
Staff Report 

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS Potential wetlands 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS Stream feature located along western and 
southern property lines (50’ Riparian Buffer along 
tributary off of Swift Creek).   

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Subdivision plan required 
**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations.  See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district. 

 
 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 
 

 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION Church Street Ext – NCDOT Road 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 

TRAFFIC COUNTS 
(per NCDOT Annual Average Daily Traffic Map) 

Church Street Ext – 180 

TRIP GENERATION N/A 

SIDEWALKS Required. 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD 

STREET CONNECTIVITY N/A 

OTHER N/A 

 

 
 

 

 

 

16



 

3 
Staff Report 

IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed R-10 zoning district would allow land uses that are compatible with the 
general character of the area.   
 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this property as a Suburban Residential character 

area. The requested R-10 District zoning district is generally consistent with this 

character area as defined by the future land use designation. 

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Suburban Residential - General Character:   

• Low to medium density single family residential.  This land use type was identified as 

one that is appropriate and valued. This flexible land use type is appropriate for many 

parts of the planning area. 

  

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 

Community Outreach 

Applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning with owners of surrounding 
properties. 
 
Staff Analysis 
The 27.05 acre property is currently being used for agriculture.  The property North of the 
request is zoned AR and is wooded.   West of the request is zoned R-15 CUD and is a single-
family subdivision (Brookstone).  South of the request is zoned R-20 and is a single-family 
subdivision (Colonial Woods).  East of the request is zoned AR and is primarily agricultural 
but is also partially wooded. 
 
The R-10 District rezoning request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Zoning 
Ordinance, the  Future Land Use Plan and is generally compatible with the existing 
development and trends in the surrounding area.  With the density in the existing section of 
Brookstone, the R-10 zoning district would be within the recommended density for the overall 
subdivision.   
 
Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request for the 27.05 acres from R-15 

to R-10. 

 

17



Ordinance No: 21-O-061 

Page 1 of 2 

AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND CHAPTER 155 
ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE 

CODE OF ORDINANCES OF THE 
TOWN OF WINTERVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA 

OFFICIAL ZONING MAP 
 
 

WHEREAS, Kenneth Smith Properties, Inc. has requested amendment of the Zoning 
Ordinance of the Town of Winterville by rezoning of the property described herein of R-15 CD to 
R-10; and 
 

WHEREAS, a public hearing on the question of this zoning amendment was held, at the 
Winterville Town Hall at 7:00 p.m. on June 14, 2021, after due notice publication on June 2, 
2021 and June 9, 2021; and 
 

WHEREAS, due notice of said public hearing was also given by first class mail to the 
owners of all parcels, as shown on the County Tax Records, adjoining the parcel under 
consideration, certification of which has been to the Winterville Town Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, due notice of said public hearing was also given by posting a rezoning 
request notice on the subject property; 
 

WHEREAS, the Winterville Town Council finds that the proposed rezoning is in 
compliance with the Town of Winterville’s Comprehensive Land Use Plan; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville, 
North Carolina that: 
 

Section 1. The Town of Winterville Zoning Ordinance, Official Zoning Map, is hereby 
amended by rezoning the following described track from R-15 CD to R-10. 
 

Kenneth Smith Property, a 27.05-acre tract land located on Church Street Ext., Tax 
Parcel 70650, and being more particularly described on the attached legal description provided 
below. 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 
REZONED FROM R-15 CD to R-10 

KENNETH SMITH PROPERTIES, INC. 
WINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP, PITT, NC 

 
Lying and being situate in Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina and being 

more particularly described as follows: 
 

Lying and being in Winterville Township, Pitt County, North Carolina, lying north of NCSR 
1131 Reedy Branch Road, east of NCSR 1149 Old NC Highway 11, and being bounded on 
the north and east by Chapel Hill Foundation Real Estate Holdings, Inc. (Deed Book 3448, 
Page 378), on the south by Wayland Hunsucker (Deed Book 3987, Page 859) and David A. 
Evans, Jr. (Deed Book 1825, Page 860 and Deed Book 1159, Page 525), on the west by 
NCSR 1714 Church Street Extension and Brookstone Subdivision, Phase 1 (Map Book 68, 
Page 158) and being more particularly described as follows: 

 

18



Ordinance No: 21-O-061 

Page 2 of 2 

Beginning at a point on the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 Church Street Extension, 
said point being the southernmost corner of the Brookstone Subdivision, Phase 1 as 
recorded in Map Book 68, Page 158, the southwest corner of the area labeled "Stormwater 
Detention Pond", the True Point of Beginning. 

 

Thence from the True Point of Beginning, leaving the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 
Church Street Extension and following the eastern boundary of Brookstone Subdivision, 
Phase 1 the following calls: N81-42-46E- 215.96', thence N48-19-31E- 969.97', thence 
N37-02-47E- 159.62', thence leaving the boundary of Brookstone Subdivision, Phase 1 and 
following the southwestern boundary of Chapel Hill Foundation Real Estate Holdings, Inc 
the following calls: S67-37-12E- 36.20', thence S87-34-33E- 511.95', thence S26-47-13E- 
1300.25' to a point in the centerline of a ditch, the northern line of Wayland Hunsucker 
(Deed Book 3987, Page 859), thence along the centerline of the ditch the following calls: 
N81-35-04W - 113.46', thence N69- 52-19W -139.46', thence N67-09-46W -292.02', thence 
N65-09-13W - 120.22', thence N59-30-20W - 111.63', thence N71-30-23W - 231.76', 
thence S80-31-11W - 221.53', thence S84-40-30W - 146.80', thence N86-40-36W -146.54', 
thence S85-57-00W - 594.71' to a point in the David A. Evans, Jr. property (Deed Book 
1159, Page 525), thence continuing along the ditch N54-13-26W -161.68' to the eastern 
right-of-way of NCSR 1714 Church Street Extension, thence leaving the ditch and following 
the eastern right-of-way of Church Street Extension N17- 33-38E-24.41' to the True Point of 
Beginning, containing 27.05 Acres and being the property recorded in Deed Book 1940, 
Page 846 of the Pitt County Registry and being all of Tax Parcel 70650 as filed with the Pitt 
County Tax Accessor's Office. 

 
End of Legal Description 

 
Section 2. This action shall be shown on the Official Zoning Map and recorded in Map 

Book ______ , Page ______. 

 
Section 3. This ordinance shall become effective upon adoption. 

 
 

Adopted this 14th day of June 2021. 
 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

19



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: June 14, 2021 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject:  Council Meeting Minutes. 

Action Requested: Approval of Minutes. 

Attachment: Draft Minutes of the Council meetings listed below. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 6/7/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/8/2021 ☒ TM: 6/10/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/10/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the following set of Council Meeting Minutes: 

• May 10, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Minutes. 

 

20



 

Page 1 of 27 

 
 

WINTERVILLE TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 

MONDAY, MAY 10, 2021 – 7:00 PM 

WINTERVILLE TOWN HALL ASSEMBLY ROOM 

(LIMITED IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE AND ELECTRONIC MEETING VIA ZOOM) 
 

The Winterville Town Council met in a Regular Meeting on the above date at 7:00 PM in the Town Hall 
Assembly Room, with Mayor Douglas A. Jackson presiding. The following were present: 

 
Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 

Richard (Ricky) E. Hines, Mayor Pro Tem 
Tony P. Moore, Councilman 
Johnny Moye, Councilman 

Veronica W. Roberson, Councilwoman 
Mark C. Smith, Councilman 

Keen Lassiter, Town Attorney 
Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Ben Williams, Assistant Town Manager 
Ryan Willhite, Police Chief 

David Moore, Fire Chief 
Robert Sutton, Electric Director 

Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 
Evan Johnston, Parks and Recreation Director 

Bryan Jones, Planning Director 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

 
CALL TO ORDER: Mayor Jackson called the meeting to order. 
 
INVOCATION: Councilman Smith gave the Invocation. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Mayor Jackson led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
WELCOME: Mayor Jackson welcomed the public. 
 
APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Hines to approve the 
agenda as presented. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Hines, yes; 
Councilman Moore, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilwoman Roberson, yes; and 
Councilman Smith, yes. Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
PROCLAMATIONS: 
Town Clerk Harvey gave a summary of the following Proclamations: 
 
  

21



 

Page 2 of 27 

National Day of Prayer. 
 

 

22



 

Page 3 of 27 

Mother’s Day. 
 

 

23



 

Page 4 of 27 

National Police Week. 
 

 

24



 

Page 5 of 27 

EMS Week. 
 

 

25



 

Page 6 of 27 

Public Works Week. 
 

 

26



 

Page 7 of 27 

Memorial Day. 
 

 

27



 

Page 8 of 27 

PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
 
Public Hearing on Zoning Ordinance Amendments: Planning Director Jones gave the following 
presentation: 
 
Planning Staff is recommending the following amendments be made to the Zoning Ordinance: 
 

• Mini-Warehouses: remove from all zoning districts except Industrial (I) and add “Self-Storage Units” 
to the use type description for clarification. 

• Remove reference to Pitt County (“County of Pitt”) in Section 14.2. This language was still included 
in the Ordinance from when the County administered building inspections within the Town’s 
jurisdiction. 

• Add language to “SR 23. ABC Sales for On Premise Consumption; Bars” to exclude property within 
the Central Business District from separation requirements. 

• Add “Section 10.5 – Multifamily Residential Design Standards”. This section provides design and 
configuration requirements for multi-family developments. 

 
➢ The Planning and Zoning board unanimously recommended approval of the Zoning Ordinance 

Amendments. 
 

 
 

28



 

Page 9 of 27 

 
 

 
 

 

29



 

Page 10 of 27 

 
 

 
 

 

30



 

Page 11 of 27 

 
 

 
 

 

31



 

Page 12 of 27 

 
 

 
 

 

32



 

Page 13 of 27 

 
 

 
 

 

33



 

Page 14 of 27 

 
 

 
 

 

34



 

Page 15 of 27 

 
 

 
 

 

35



 

Page 16 of 27 

 
 

 
 

 

36



 

Page 17 of 27 

 
 

 
 

 

37



 

Page 18 of 27 

 
 

 
 

 

38



 

Page 19 of 27 

Mayor Jackson declared the public hearing open, asked if anyone would like to speak in favor of the 
proposed amendments. There were no speakers. Mayor Jackson asked if anyone would like to speak 
in opposition of the proposed amendments. There were no speakers. 
 
Mayor Jackson asked for any further discussion or any more questions. Hearing none what is the 
Board’s pleasure. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Hines and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve 
the Zoning Ordinance Amendments. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Hines, 
yes; Councilman Moore, no; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilwoman Roberson, yes; and 
Councilman Smith, yes. Motion carried, 4-1. 
 
Council and Staff discussed various items relating to the amendments including limits on bars, noise 
ordinance, trash, and related items arising from the growing downtown area. Council asked Staff to look 
into these items and report back with actions and alternatives. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT: Mayor Jackson read the Public Comment Policy. 
 
Alton Wadford, the Watermelon Festival will be held this year, August 26 – 28, 2021. 
 
Council and Staff discussed the upcoming Festival and how it will work this year coming out of the 
pandemic 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Mayor Pro Tem Hines to approve $20,000 
to the Watermelon Festival out of the FY 2020-2021 budget. The poll vote results are as follows: 
Mayor Pro Tem Hines, yes; Councilman Moore, yes; Councilman Moye, no; Councilwoman 
Roberson, yes; and Councilman Smith, yes. Motion carried, 4-1. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA:  
 
Approval of the following sets of Council Meeting Minutes: 
➢ April 12, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes; and 
➢ April 26, 2021 Budget Progress Meeting Minutes. 
 
Schedule Public Hearing for June 14, 2021 on Kenneth Smith Property (Brookstone, Phase 2) 
Rezoning Request (Parcel 70650). 
 
Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilwoman Roberson to approve the 
consent agenda. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Hines, yes; Councilman 
Moore, yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilwoman Roberson, yes; and Councilman Smith, yes. 
Motion carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
OLD BUSINESS: 
 
Downtown Parking: Town Manager Parker commented that Staff has been working on a 
comprehensive Downtown Parking Plan since the last regular meeting where we received Council 
direction to move forward. Currently, there are three (3) phases of the Plan: 
 
Phase 1: 
➢ Create a Current Downtown Parking Map (included in the Agenda packet); 
➢ Restripe current parking spaces throughout the Downtown area to make them more visible to those 

seeking to park; and 
➢ Seek to improve lighting and access to businesses from current Town-owned Downtown parking 

lots. 

39



 

Page 20 of 27 

 
Phase 2: 
➢ Construct and install additional parking (as planned) on Town’s property (Market property) adjacent 

to both Church and Cooper Streets; and 
➢ Construct and install additional parking (as planned) on the Town’s property (Water Tower Park 

property) adjacent to Church Street. 
 
Phase 3: 
➢ Seek out certain Downtown Business owners to inquire is we could utilize their parking lots for 

public parking during certain times of the day; and 
➢ Seek out property owners in the Downtown area to see if they would be willing to sell their property 

to create additional parking; and 
 

• NOTE: Create and distribute Public information throughout all phases that informs people the 
locations of available parking. 

 
It should be noted that work in all three or more than one Phase could occur simultaneously. 
 
Council and Staff discussed the points of the downtown parking plan and ways to approach and 
disseminate information. 

40



 

Page 21 of 27 

 
 

41



 

Page 22 of 27 

Cost Participation for Eli’s Ridge Subdivision Lift Station to Christ Covenant School: Assistant Town 
Manager Williams provided the following information: 
 
Christ Covenant School (CCS) is preparing for their next expansion and will have to install gravity 
sewer from their campus to the New Regional Lift Station. The depth and size of the infrastructure for 
the next phases of CCS is not large or deep enough to accommodate abandoning the Winterville 
Crossing Lift Station. Staff has been investigating a possible cost share opportunity with Christ 
Covenant School (CCS) that would allow a gravity sewer main to be extended from the new Regional 
Lift Station off Old Tar Rd. to the existing Winterville Crossing Lift Station. This would allow for the 
Winterville Crossing Lift Station to be abandoned. 
 
Staff has been provided estimates of the betterment costs associated with increasing the size and 
depth of the main such that it may be extended to the Winterville Crossing Pump Station and redirect 
the flow to the New Regional Lift Station off of Old Tar Road. The estimate for the work necessary for 
CCS expansion is approximately $235,565. The estimate for installing the larger and deeper main is 
$308,270. The difference between the two estimates is $72,705. 
 
By participating in this improvement, the Town would be in position to continue the extension of the 
gravity main to the Winterville Crossing Pump Station. The estimated cost of this future extension and 
abandonment is approximately $250,000. 
 

42



 

Page 23 of 27 

 
 

43



 

Page 24 of 27 

 
 

44



 

Page 25 of 27 

 

 
 

45



 

Page 26 of 27 

Motion made by Councilman Moore and seconded by Councilman Moye to approve the Staff 
Recommendation of the Cost Participation Agreement with an estimate of $72,705 with final 
amount determined by actual bids for the Eli’s Ridge Subdivision Lift Station to Christ Covenant 
School. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Hines, yes; Councilman Moore, yes; 
Councilman Moye, yes; Councilwoman Roberson, yes; and Councilman Smith, yes. Motion 
carried unanimously, 5-0. 
 
NEW BUSINESS: 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Hines referenced the Performance Review of the Town Manager. 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Hines and seconded by Councilman Moore to approve a 3% 
increase for the Town Manager. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Hines, yes; 
Councilman Moore, yes; Councilman Moye, no; Councilwoman Roberson, yes; and Councilman 
Smith, yes. Motion carried, 4-1. 
 
OTHER AGENDA ITEMS: 
 
None 
 
ITEMS FOR FUTURE AGENDA/FUTURE WORK SESSIONS: 
 
None 
 
ANNOUNCEMENTS: Town Clerk Harvey gave the following announcements. 
 
1. Planning and Zoning Board Meeting: Monday, May 17, 2021 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly 

Room. (Limited In-Person Attendance and Electronic via ZOOM). 
2. Board of Adjustment Meeting: Tuesday, May 18, 2021 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly Room 

(Limited In-Person Attendance and Electronic via ZOOM). 
3. Town Council Budget Work Session: Tuesday, May 25, 2021 @ 6:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly 

Room (Limited In-Person Attendance and Electronic via ZOOM). 
4. Town Council Budget Work Session: Thursday, May 27 @ 6:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly Room 

(Limited In-Person Attendance and Electronic via ZOOM). 
5. Town Offices Closed: Monday, May 31, 2021 for the Memorial Day Holiday. 
6. Budget Public Hearing: Monday, June 7, 2021 @ 7:00 pm - Town Hall Assembly Room (Limited In-

Person Attendance and Electronic via ZOOM). 
 
REPORTS FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY, MAYOR, AND TOWN COUNCIL, AND TOWN 
MANAGER: 
 
Attorney Lassiter: None 
 
Councilman Moore: Concerned about our Town asked for everyone to bear with the growth. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Roberson: Thanks to the Town Staff and Board getting the Town back to normal, 
asked everyone to get your vaccine. 
 
Councilman Smith: None. 
 
Councilman Moye: COVID was a team effort from all Departments. 
 
Councilman Hines: None 
 

46



 

Page 27 of 27 

Manager Parker: None. 
 
Mayor Jackson: None. 
 
ADJOURN: 
 
Motion made by Mayor Pro Tem Hines and seconded by Councilman Smith to adjourn the 
meeting. The poll vote results are as follows: Mayor Pro Tem Hines, yes; Councilman Moore, 
yes; Councilman Moye, yes; Councilwoman Roberson, yes; and Councilman Smith, yes. Motion 
carried unanimously, 5-0. Meeting adjourned at 8:44 pm. 
 

Adopted this the 14th day of June 2021. 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

47



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: June 14, 2021 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject:  Satisfaction of Deed of Trust for CDBG Program. 

Action Requested: Approval of Satisfaction of Security Instrument. 

Attachment: Satisfaction of Security Instrument for Lina Green. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 6/7/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/8/2021 ☒ TM: 6/10/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/10/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the Satisfaction of Deed of Trust for Lina Green relative to the CDBG Program as 

recorded in Book 1125 at Page 827 in the Office of the Register of Deeds for Pitt County, NC and 

authorize Mayor to sign. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Satisfaction of Security Instrument. 

 

48



  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by 
& return to:  E. Keen Lassiter 
 

SATISFACTION OF SECURITY INSTRUMENT 
BY SECURED CREDITOR 

[N.C.G.S. 45-36.10; N.C.G.S. 45-37(a)(7)] 

 
The undersigned is now the Secured Creditor in the Security Instrument identified as follows: 
 
 Type of security instrument: Deed of Trust  
 [identify type of security instrument, such as deed of trust or mortgage] 

 
Original Grantor(s): Lina Green  

 [Identify original grantor(s), trustor(s), or mortgagor(s)] 
 
Original Secured Party(ies): Town of Winterville  

 [Identify the original beneficiary(ies), mortgagee(s), or secured party(ies) in the Security Instrument] 
 
Recording Data: The Security Instrument is recorded in Book 1125   at Page 827   
 or as document number ____________________in the Office of the Register of Deeds for 
 Pitt   County, North Carolina. 

 
This satisfaction terminates the effectiveness of the Security Instrument. 
 
Date:  
 TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 
 
 By:  
 Print or Type Name: DOUGLAS A. JACKSON  
 Title: Mayor  
State of   
County of   
 
I certify that the following person(s) personally appeared before me this day, each acknowledging to me that he or she 
signed the foregoing document:  Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor of the Town of Winterville  
  [insert name(s) of principal(s)]. 
 
Date:     
  , Notary Public 
 Notary’s Printed or Typed Name 
 My commission expires:   

49



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: June 14, 2021 

Presenter: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Satisfaction of Deed of Trust for CDBG Program. 

Action Requested: Approval of Satisfaction of Security Instrument. 

Attachment: Satisfaction of Security Instrument for Paul Lynch. 

Prepared By: Donald Harvey, Town Clerk Date: 6/7/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/8/2021 ☒ TM: 6/10/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/10/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

Approval of the Satisfaction of Deed of Trust for Paul Lynch relative to the CDBG Program as 

recorded in Book 917 at Page 89 in the Office of the Register of Deeds of Pitt County, NC and 

authorize Mayor to sign. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Approval of Satisfaction of Security Instrument. 

 

50



  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Prepared by 
& return to:  E. Keen Lassiter 
 

SATISFACTION OF SECURITY INSTRUMENT 
BY SECURED CREDITOR 

[N.C.G.S. 45-36.10; N.C.G.S. 45-37(a)(7)] 

 
The undersigned is now the Secured Creditor in the Security Instrument identified as follows: 
 
 Type of security instrument: Deed of Trust  
 [identify type of security instrument, such as deed of trust or mortgage] 

 
Original Grantor(s): Paul Lynch  

 [Identify original grantor(s), trustor(s), or mortgagor(s)] 
 
Original Secured Party(ies): Town of Winterville  

 [Identify the original beneficiary(ies), mortgagee(s), or secured party(ies) in the Security Instrument] 
 
Recording Data: The Security Instrument is recorded in Book 917   at Page 89   
 or as document number ____________________in the Office of the Register of Deeds for 
 Pitt   County, North Carolina. 

 
This satisfaction terminates the effectiveness of the Security Instrument. 
 
Date:  
 TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 
 
 By:  
 Print or Type Name: DOUGLAS A. JACKSON  
 Title: Mayor  
State of   
County of   
 
I certify that the following person(s) personally appeared before me this day, each acknowledging to me that he or she 
signed the foregoing document:  Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor of the Town of Winterville  
  [insert name(s) of principal(s)]. 
 
Date:     
  , Notary Public 
 Notary’s Printed or Typed Name 
 My commission expires:   

51



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: June 14, 2021 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Carroll Crossing, Section 3 – Rezoning Request (Parcel 04819). 

Action Requested: Schedule the Public Hearing for the Rezoning Request on August 9, 2021. 

Attachment: Rezoning Application, Rezoning Map, Legal Description, Notification to Adjacent Property 
Owners, Address Labels, and Staff Report. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 6/2/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/8/2021 ☒ TM: 6/10/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/10/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

Applicant: Le & Lam Properties, LLC. 

 

Location: Church Street Ext south of its intersection with Laurie Ellis Road. 

 

Parcel Number: 04819. 

 

Site Data: 5.295 acres. 

 

Current Zoning District: NC. 

 

Proposed Zoning District: R-8 CD. 

 

❖ Proposed Conditions:  All duplexes shall have brick fronts. 

❖ Planning and Zoning Board voted unanimously to recommend approval on May 17, 2021. 

❖ Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning request on May 6, 2021. 

❖ Notification was posted on the site on April 29, 2021. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Schedule the Public Hearing for August 9, 2021. 

 

52



53



54



55



 
 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

TO BE REZONED FROM CN TO R-8CUD 
LE & LAM PROPERTIES, LLC 

TRACT 1 
WINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP, PITT, NC 

APRIL 26, 2021 
 
Beginning at a point on the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church Street) said point 
being the southwestern corner of the William David Harrell and wife Carolyn Harrell Property 
as described in Deed Book 3264, Page 157 of the Pitt County Register of Deeds.  From the 
above described beginning, so located, running thence as follows: 
 
Leaving the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church Street) and with the southern line 
of above referenced William David Harrell and wife Carolyn Harrell Property,  
S 63°04’56” E 156.11’, thence S 63°03’57” E 106.62’, thence S 09°00’47” W 729.38’ to a 
point on the northern right-of-way of Jeremy Lane, thence with the northern right-of-way of 
Jeremy Lane, N 61°21’44” W 109.66’ to the point of curvature, thence with a curve to the 
left an arc distance of 119.69’, said curve having a radius of 375.00’ and a chord bearing 
N 70°31’15” W 119.38’ to the point of reverse curvature, thence with a curve to the right 
an arc distance of 46.44’, said curve having a radius of 30.00’ and a chord bearing  
N 35°20’00” W 41.94’ to a point on the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church 
Street), thence with the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church Street),  
N 09°00'47" E 721.67’ to the point of beginning containing 4.193 acres and being a portion 
of the property described in Deed Book 4079, Page 773 of the Pitt County Register of 
Deeds. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y:\WORD-DOC\LEGAL DESCRIPTION\REZONING\21-054 - Carroll Crossing, Section 3.docx 
  56



 
 

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

TO BE REZONED FROM CN TO R-8CUD 
LE & LAM PROPERTIES, LLC 

TRACT 2 
WINTERVILLE TOWNSHIP, PITT, NC 

APRIL 26, 2021 
 
Beginning at a point on the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church Street) said point 
being the northwestern corner of the Franklin R. Fields and wife, Andrea O. Fields Property 
as described in Deed Book 3884, Page 270of the Pitt County Register of Deeds.  From the 
above described beginning, so located, running thence as follows: 
 
With the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church Street), N 09°00’47” E 142.33’ to the 
point of curvature where the eastern right-of-way of NCSR 1714 (Church Street) intersects 
the curved southern right-of-way of Jeremy Lane, thence with the curved southern right-of-
way of Jeremy Lane an arc distance of 48.10’, said curve to the right having a radius of 
30.00’ and a chord bearing N 54°56’32” E 43.11’ to the point of compound curvature, 
thence with a curve to the right an arc distance of 97.68’, said curve having a radius of 
315.00’ and a chord bearing S 70°14’44” E 97.29’ to the point of tangency, thence  
S 61°21’44” E 131.06’, thence leaving the southern right-of-way of Jeremy Lane,  
S 09°00’47” W 195.72’, thence N 62°05'36" W 264.24’ to the point of beginning containing 
1.102 acres and being a portion of the property described in Deed Book 4079, Page 773 
of the Pitt County Register of Deeds. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Y:\WORD-DOC\LEGAL DESCRIPTION\REZONING\21-054 - Carroll Crossing, Section 3.docx 57



2571 Railroad Street                Phone (252)215-2358 
PO Box 1459           Fax (252)756-3109 
Winterville, NC 28590            www.wintervillenc.com 

 
Planning and Zoning 

Rezoning Request 
 

 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Winterville Planning and Zoning Board will meet on 
Monday, May 17, 2021 at 7:00 pm in the Town Hall Assembly Room at 2571 Railroad Street, in order 
to consider the following request: 
 
Le & Lam Properties, LLC has submitted a rezoning application to rezone Parcel 04819 (5.295 Acres) 
as shown on the attached map from Neighborhood Commercial (CN) to R-8 CD, with the condition 
that all duplexes shall have brick fronts.  The R-8 Residential District is a quiet, medium density 
neighborhood consisting of single-family residences along with limited home occupations and private 
and public community uses. 
 
Copies of the Zoning Ordinance and Map are on file at the Planning Department Office in the Town 
Tall and are available for public inspection by contacting bryan.jones@wintervillenc.com or the 
Winterville Planning Department at (252) 215-2358 or at wintervillenc.com. 
 
**The Town of Winterville will be keeping measures in place in an ongoing effort to mitigate the 
spread of COVID-19.  These measures include limiting physical attendance at the meeting, 
employing social distancing, and implementing remote participation.  The meeting is open to the 
public; however, limited attendance will be allowed to attend in-person due to COVID-19 provisions 
and the meeting will be available electronically.  The public is encouraged to watch the meeting live 
on YouTube (www.wintervillenc.com/videos).  Those that wish to address the Planning and Zoning 
Board during the meeting should contact the Town Clerk at (252) 215-2344 to register by one 
business day before the meeting at 5:00 p.m.  The public may submit written comments to the 
Town Clerk’s office, 2571 Railroad Street, Winterville, NC 28590, or via email 
to don.harvey@wintervillenc.com. Please include your name and address. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    

58

http://www.wintervillenc.com/videos
mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


  

Le & Lam Properties LLC 
2364 Blackstone Drive 
Winterville, NC 28590 

     

 Franklin R. Fields 
Andrea O. Fields 
2947 Church Street Ex 
Winterville, NC 28590 

     

Keith Haight 
Diana Haight 
226 B Jeremy Lane 
Winterville NC 28590 

  

  

Linda V McLawhorn 
2351 Old Creek Road 
Greenville NC 27834 

     

 Betty S Fields 
3010 A KINSEY LP 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

 Toshi S James 
3010 B KINSEY LP 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

  

  

GAIL L CRISTIANO 
DENNIS M CRISTIANO 
3004 A KINSEY LP 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

JARET LOGAN 
AMY LOGAN 
3004 B KINSEY LP 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

AKR HOLDINGS LLC 
824 RUPERT DR 
GREENVILLE NC 27858 

  

  

JOHN H EVANS 

2305 FIELDSTONE PL 

WINTERVILLE NC 28590 
     

DAVIS R SMITH, JR 
2956 A KINSEY LP 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

JEFFEREY D HASSELBACH 
222 PEPSI WAY  
AYDEN, NC 28513 

  

  

MURRAY TRUESDALE  
KUMIKO TRUESDALE 
2802 A HALEY CT 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

 RICHARD S COLTRAIN 
3903 ARROWHEAD ROAD 
AYDEN, NC 28513 

     

EDWARD WETHERINGTON  
756 STRICKLAND TERRACE 
KINSTON, NC 28504 

  

  

AUSTIN DIXON 
2803 B HALEY CT 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

CHRISTINE K SMITH 
2805 A HALEY CT 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

 TAMARA L RUPKE 

2805 B HALEY CT 

WINTERVILLE NC 28590 
  

  

SHERON E GREEN 
2944 A KINSEY LP 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

WILLIAM DAVID HARRELL 
CAROLYN HARRELL 
5838 REEDY BRANCH RD 
AYDEN NC 28513 

     

ROBERTS COMPANY 
133 FORLINES RD 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

  

  

HAPPY TRAIL FARMS LLC 
PO BOX 1863 
GREENVILLE NC 27835 

     

 JACHIE POHL 
2995-A KINSEY LP 
WINTERVILLE NC 28590 

     

  

  

  

  

     

  

     

  

  

  

  

     

  

     

  

  
 59



 

1 
Staff Report 

 

 Town of Winterville Planning Department 

Zoning Staff Report 
 

GENERAL INFORMATION 

APPLICANT Le & Lam Properties, LLC  

HEARING TYPE Rezoning Request 

REQUEST CN to R-8 CD 

CONDITIONS All duplexes will have brick facades.  

LOCATION Church Street Extension south of its intersection with Laurie Ellis Rd 

PARCEL ID NUMBER(S) 04819 

PUBLIC NOTIFICATION Adjacent property owners were mailed notification of the rezoning 
request on May 6, 2021.  Notification was posted on site on April 
29, 2021.  25 properties were mailed notification. 
 

TRACT SIZE 5.295 acres 

TOPOGRAPHY Flat 

VEGETATION Cleared 

 
 

SITE DATA 

EXISTING USE Vacant 

 

ADJACENT PROPERTY ZONING ADJACENT LAND USE 

N AR Daycare 

E R-8 CD Residential 

W I Manufacturing 

S AR Residential 

 
 

ZONING DISTRICT STANDARDS  

DISTRICT SUMMARIES EXISTING REQUESTED 

 
ZONING DISTRICT DESIGNATION 

 
CN (Neighborhood 
Commercial) 

 
R-8 CD 

MAX DENSITY n/a n/a 

 
TYPICAL USES 

Shopping facilities for goods 
and services to serve a 
neighborhood. 

Medium Density; single-family 
residential; limited home 
occupations. 

60



 

2 
Staff Report 

  

SPECIAL INFORMATION 

OVERLAY DISTRICT N/A 

ENVIRONMENTAL / SOILS N/A 

FLOODPLAIN N/A 

STREAMS N/A   

OTHER If >1 acre is disturbed, site must meet Phase 2 
stormwater requirements and provide Soil 
Erosion and Sedimentation Control Permit 

SITE PLAN REQUIREMENTS Subdivision plan required 
**These regulations may not reflect all requirements for all situations.  See the Town of Winterville Zoning 

Ordinance for all applicable regulations for site requirements for this zoning district. 

 
 

LANDSCAPING & BUFFER REQUIREMENTS 

Development must meet requirements of the Zoning Ordinance (Article X-A. Vegetation and Buffering 

Requirements). 
 

 

TRANSPORTATION 

STREET CLASSIFICATION Church Street Ext – NCDOT Road 

SITE ACCESS All access must be designed and constructed to 
meet the Town of Winterville / NCDOT standards. 

TRAFFIC COUNTS 
(per NCDOT Annual Average Daily Traffic Map) 

Church Street Ext – 180 

TRIP GENERATION N/A 

SIDEWALKS Required. 

TRAFFIC IMPACT STUDY (TIS) TBD 

STREET CONNECTIVITY N/A 

OTHER N/A 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

61



 

3 
Staff Report 

IMPACT ANALYSIS 

Land Use Compatibility 

The proposed R-8 CD zoning district would allow land uses that are compatible with the 
general character of the area.   
 
Town of Winterville Comprehensive Land Use Plan Policies 
 
The Future Land Use Map designates this property as a Suburban Residential character 

area. The requested R-8 CD zoning district is generally consistent with this character 

area as defined by the future land use designation. 

Comprehensive Land Use Plans - Recommendations & Implementation 
 

Suburban Residential - General Character:   

• Low to medium density single family residential.  This land use type was identified as 

one that is appropriate and valued. This flexible land use type is appropriate for many 

parts of the planning area. 

  

STAFF ANALYSIS AND RECOMMENDATION 
 

Community Outreach 

Applicant is encouraged to discuss this proposed rezoning with owners of surrounding 
properties. 
 
Staff Analysis 
The 5.295 acre property is currently vacant.  The property North of the request is zoned AR 
with a daycare.   West of the request is zoned Industrial (Roberts Company).  South of the 
request is zoned AR and is a single-family home.  East of the request is zoned R-8 CD and is 
a duplex subdivision (Carroll Crossing). 
 
The R-8 CD rezoning request is consistent with the intent and purpose of the Zoning 
Ordinance, the  Future Land Use Plan and is generally compatible with the existing 
development and trends in the surrounding area.   
 
Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends approval of the rezoning request for the 5.295 acres from CN 

to R-8 CD. 

 

62



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: Consent Agenda 

 

Meeting Date: June 14, 2021 

Presenter: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Budget Amendment 2020-2021-4. 

Action Requested: Approve the Budget Amendment. 

Attachment: Budget Amendment 2020-2021-4. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 6/7/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/8/2021 ☒ TM: 6/10/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/10/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

This is the fourth budget amendment for the 2020-2021 Fiscal Year. 

This amendment addresses several items: 

The first item addresses increased revenues due to the economy being better than projected. This includes 

Prior year taxes, Vehicle Property Taxes, and Local option sales tax. The total increase for all these 

revenues is $548,383. 

The Second item addresses the need to increase the overtime budget for the EMS. We have changed the 

way we account for these items, and this is the first year we have budgeted in this manner. However, these 

expenses are reimbursed by the EMS at 100%. 

The third item addresses reimbursement from FEMA for Hurricane Isaias in the amount of $80,000 

The fourth item addresses the reduction in revenue for Interest Income. Interest Income will also be reduced 

by $80,000 due to much lower interest rates. This is distributed across all funds. 

The fifth item address the development fees that were collected during the fiscal year. They were $27,000 for 

the Electric Fund, $13,750 for the Water Fund, and $48,859 for the Sewer Fund. 

The sixth item address departments that needed additional funding to cover the raises that the Council 

approved for the current FY. They were the Fire and Planning departments in the amount of $17,000 for the 

Fire, and $5,000 for the Planning Department. All other department absorbed the increase in the current year 

budgets with savings from open positions. 

The last item addresses the Councils approval to provide the Watermelon Festival with an additional $20,000 

Budgetary Impact: The total budget amendment is a net increase of $274,294. 

Recommendation: Approve the Budget Amendment. 

 

63



 

SECTION 1. Revenues are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Fund Increase Decrease

TAXES PRIOR YEAR 10-0000-00-3120 General Fund 39,158$        

TAXES 2 PRIOR YEARS 10-0000-00-3130 General Fund 2,800$          

OTHER PRIOR YEARS 10-0000-00-3140 General Fund 6,500$          

TAXES PENALTIES AND INTER 10-0000-00-3150 General Fund 9,925$          

VEHICLE PROPERTY TAXES 10-0000-00-3160 General Fund 90,000$        

LOCAL OPTION SALES TAX 10-0000-00-3210 General Fund 400,000$      

REIMBURSEMENT FOR EMS 10-0000-00-3861 General Fund 12,000$        

FEMA GRANT REIMBURSEMENT 10-0000-00-3425 General Fund 80,000$        

MISC REVENUE 10-0000-00-3820 General Fund 30,000$        

INTEREST INCOME 10-0000-00-3904 General Fund 80,000$        

FUND BALANCE CONTRIBUTION 10-0000-00-3831 General Fund 424,799$      

RECREATION SUB. FEES 15-0000-00-3627 Recreation Fund 19,101$        

CONNECTION FEES 60-0000-00-3902 Electiric Fund 27,000$        

INTEREST INCOME 60-0000-00-3904 Electiric Fund 70,000$        

ELECTRIC SALES 60-0000-00-3901 Electiric Fund 70,000$        

CONNECTION FEES 61-0000-00-3922 Water Fund 13,750$        

INTEREST INCOME   In 61-0000-00-3904 Water Fund 1,000$          

FUND BALANCE CONTRIBUTION 61-0000-00-3831 Water Fund 1,000$          

SEWER SYSTEM IMPROVEMENT FEE 62-0000-00-3934 Sewer fund 48,859$        

INTEREST INCOME 62-0000-00-3904 Sewer fund 2,500$          

SEWER CHARGES 62-0000-00-3931 Sewer fund 2,500$          

Total 852,593$      578,299$      

SECTION 2. Appropriations are to be changed as follows:

LINE ITEM DESCRIPTION Department Fund Increase Decrease

CREDIT CARD TRANSACTIONS Finance General Fund 30,000$        

EMS OVERTIME Rescue General Fund 12,000$        

SUBDIVISION LOC RES EXP Non-Departmental General Fund 12,500$        

FIRE SALARIES Fire General Fund 17,000$        

PLANNIG SALARIES Planning General Fund 5,000$          

CIVIC CONTRIBUTION Non-Departmental General Fund 20,000$        

CONTENGENCY Non-Departmental General Fund 69,084$        

CONTRIBUTION TO CAPITAL RESERVE Recreation 19,101$        

CONTRIBUTION TO CAPITAL RESERVE Electric 27,000$        

CONTRIBUTION TO CAPITAL RESERVE Water 13,750$        

CONTRIBUTION TO CAPITAL RESERVE Sewer 48,859$        

Total 274,294$      -$               

Adopted the 14th day of June 2021.

BUDGET ORDINANCE AMENDMENT 20-21-4

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Town of Winterville, that the following amendment be made to the 

annual budget ordinance for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2021:

Mayor

Town Clerk 

64



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: June 14, 2021 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: 2021-2022 Fiscal Year Budget Ordinance. 

Action Requested: Adoption of Budget Ordinance. 

Attachment: Draft FY 2021-2022 Budget Ordinance. 

Prepared By: Anthony Bowers, Finance Director Date: 6/7/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/8/2021 ☒ TM: 6/10/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/10/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

Attached please find the Draft Budget Ordinance for the 2021-2022 Fiscal Year. The Budget Ordinance 

reflects totals from the Draft Balanced Budget as presented and discussed at the Budget Public Hearing held 

on Monday, June 7, 2021. 

Budgetary Impact: As presented. 

Recommendation: Staff recommends Council adoption of the Ordinance. 

 

65



TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 
BUDGET ORDINANCE 

FISCAL YEAR 2021-2022 
 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the Town of Winterville, North Carolina: 
 
SECTION 1: It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the General 
Fund for the Fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022: 
 

Ad Valorem Taxes  4,436,432 

Other Taxes and Licenses  2,840,707 

Permits and Fees  15,750 

Sanitation Fees  571,000 

Investment Income  4,000 

Inspections  188,000 

Miscellaneous Income  146,380 

Grant Revenue  69,000 

Inter-Fund Transfer Services  1,361,996 

Electric Fund Contribution  650,000 

EMS Contribution  146,201 

Fund Balance Appropriation  469,544 

Total  10,899,010 

 
SECTION 2: The following amounts are hereby appropriated in the General Fund for the 
operation of the Town government and its activities for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 
2021 and ending June 30, 2022: 
 

Governing Board  108,211 

Administration  701,275 

Finance  969,169 

Inspections  336,194 

Human Resources  135,871 

Information Technology  451,500 

Planning Department  150,424 

Public Buildings  708,806 

Grounds and Maintenance  32,000 

Police Department  2,402,603 

Fire Department  999,900 

EMS Department  146,201 

Animal Control  15,253 

Mosquito Control  8,600 

Public Works  895,093 

Sanitation  553,000 

Non-Departmental  2,284,910 

Total  10,899,010 
 
  

66



2 

SECTION 3: The following revenues will be available in the Recreation Fund for the 
Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022: 
 
 Program Fees $127,525 
 Concession Income $50,000 
 General Fund Transfer $967,243 
  $1,144,768 
 
 
SECTION 4: The following amount is hereby appropriated in the Recreation Fund for 
operation of the Winterville Recreation Programs during the Fiscal Year beginning July 
1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022: 
 
 Recreation Department $1,144,768 
  $1,144,768 
 
 
SECTION 5: It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Powell Bill 
Fund for the Fiscal year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022: 
 
 Grant Funding $228,247 
 Interest Income $120 
  $228,367 
 
 
SECTION 6: The following amount is hereby appropriated in the Powell Bill Fund for the 
operation of the Powell Bill Program for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2021 and 
ending June 30, 2022: 
 
 Powell Bill $228,367 
  $228,367 
 
 
SECTION 7: It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Home 
Housing Program Fund for the Fiscal year July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022: 
 
 General Fund Contribution $20,000 
  $20,000 
 
 
SECTION 8: The following amount is hereby appropriated in the Home Housing 
Program Fund for the operation of the Urgent Repair and Housing Program for the Fiscal 
Year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022: 
 
 Contracted Service $20,000 
  $20,000 
 
  

67



3 

SECTION 9: It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Fire Grant 
Fund for the Fiscal year July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022: 
 
 
 Grant Funding $440,885 
 General Fund Contribution $623,931 
  $1,064,816 
 
 
SECTION 10: It is estimated that the following appropriations will be available in the Fire 
Grant Fund for the Fiscal year July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022: 
 
 
 Fire Grant Fund $1,064,816 
  $1,064,816 
 
 
SECTION 11: It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Electric 
Enterprise Fund for the Fiscal year July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022: 
 
 Sales and Service $7,094,671 
 Retained Earnings $226,915 
  $7,321,586 
 
 
SECTION 12: The following amount is hereby appropriated in the Electric Enterprise 
Fund for the operation of the electric utility for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2021 and 
ending June 30, 2022: 
 
 Electric Department $7,321,586 
  $7,321,586 
 
 
SECTION 13: It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Water 
Enterprise Fund for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022: 
 
 Sales and Service $1,646,514 
  $1,646,514 
 
 
SECTION 14: The following amount is hereby appropriated in the Water Enterprise Fund 
for the operation of the water utility for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending 
June 30, 2022: 
 
 Water Department $1,646,514 
  $1,646,514 
 
  

68



4 

SECTION 15: It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the Sewer 
Enterprise Fund for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022: 
 
 Sales and Service $2,489,900 
  $2,489,900 
 
 
SECTION 16: The following amount is hereby appropriated in the Sewer Enterprise 
Fund for the operation of the sewer utility for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2021 and 
ending June 30, 2022: 
 
 Sewer Department $2,489,900 
  $2,489,900 
 
 
SECTION 17: It is estimated that the following revenues will be available in the 
Stormwater Fund for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022: 
 
 Sales and Service $509,930 
  $509,930 
 
 
SECTION 18: The following amount is hereby appropriated in the Stormwater Fund for 
the operation of the Storm Water utility for the Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2021 and 
ending June 30, 2022: 
 
 
 Storm Water Department $509,930 
  $509,930 
 
SECTION 19: There is hereby levied a tax at the rate of forty-seven and one-half cents 
($.475) per one hundred dollars ($100) valuation of property as listed for taxes as of 
January 1, 2021 for the purpose of raising the revenue listed as “Ad Valorem Taxes” in 
the General Fund in Section 1 of this ordinance. This rate is based on a total estimated 
valuation of property for the purposes of taxation of $787,066,676 and an estimated rate 
of collection of 98% for real and personal property, 100% for vehicles. 
 
SECTION 20: The Town Manager (Budget Officer) is hereby authorized to transfer 
appropriations as contained herein under the following conditions: 
 

a. May amend line item appropriations within any Fund as long as the total 
appropriation of that Fund is not changed. A record of any such 
amendments shall be maintained by the Finance Director for public 
inspection. 

b. May not transfer any amounts between funds, unless approved by the 
Governing Board through an amendment to the Budget Ordinance. 

 
SECTION 21: The attached Fee and Utility Rate Schedules are hereby adopted for the 
Fiscal Year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022. 
 
SECTION 22: The attached Pay and Classification Plan is hereby adopted for the Fiscal 
Year beginning July 1, 2021 and ending June 30, 2022. 
  

69



5 

SECTION 23: Copies of the Budget Ordinance shall be furnished to the Town Clerk to 
the Governing Board and to the Town Manager (Budget Officer) to be kept on file by 
them for their direction in the disbursement of funds. 
 

Adopted this 14th day of June 2021. 
 
 
 
  ____________________________ 
  Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
 
 
 
Attest: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

70



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: June 14, 2021 

Presenter: Bryan Jones, Planning Director 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Reappointment of Board of Adjustment Members. 

Action Requested: Reappoint Members to the Board of Adjustment. 

Attachment: None. 

Prepared By: Bryan Jones, Planning Director Date: 6/3/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/8/2021 ☒ TM: 6/10/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/10/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

Board of Adjustment Members 

The Board of Adjustment (BOA) shall consist of five (5) Members; four (4) members of the board shall be 

appointed by the Town Council and shall be residents of the Town of Winterville, and one (1) member shall 

be appointed by the Board of County Commissioners of Pitt County, all for overlapping terms of three years. 

One regular member alternate and one ETJ alternate.  

Staff recommends reappointing the following Board of Adjustment Members to three year terms effective 

immediately (with term expiration of 6/30/2024).  

1. Edward Reynolds 

2. Alfred Phillips 

3. Jeffrey Briley (ETJ) re-appointed by the Pitt County Board of Commissioners in June 2021. 

Budgetary Impact: NA. 

Recommendation: Reappointment of the members to three (3) year terms. 

 

71



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: June 14, 2021 

Presenter: Evan Johnston, Director of Parks and Recreation 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: Reappoint Recreation Advisory Board Members with Expiring Terms. 

Action Requested: Reappoint Johnny Fleming, Victoria Hawkins, John Relford, and Carolyn Wanczyk to 
Recreation Advisory Board. 

Attachment: Applications on file. 

Prepared By: Evan Johnston, Director of Parks and Recreation Date: 6/2/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/8/2021 ☒ TM: 6/10/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/10/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

Recreation Advisory Board Members: 

The Recreation Advisory Board (RAB) is made up of six (6) Resident members, three (3) Non-Resident 

(ETJ) members, and one (1) Alternate member that may be a resident or non-resident.  

The Recreation Advisory Board (RAB) has four (4) members whose term expiration is June 30, 2021 and 

have requested to be appointed to an additional term. Following is list of said members and their 

membership type: Johnny Fleming (Resident), Victoria Hawkins (Resident), John Relford (Resident), and 

Carolyn Wanczyk (Alternate).  

Staff recommends that all current members, as listed above, be appointed to an additional two (2) year term 

on the Recreation Advisory Board. 

Staff would like to note that there are three applications on file in which applicant indicated interest in 

Recreation Advisory Board: 

• Amy Brothers - Resident: Listed Recreation Advisory Board as only priority. 

• James Jones - Resident: Listed Recreation Advisory Board as number two (2) priority. 

• Katrina Jones - Resident: Listed Recreation Advisory Board as number two (2) priority 

Budgetary Impact: None. 

Recommendation: Reappoint Johnny Fleming, Victoria Hawkins, John Relford, and Carolyn Wanczyk to 
Recreation Advisory Board. 

 

72



TOWN OF WINTERVILLE 

Request for Appointments to Boards, Commissions and Committees of the Town of Winterville 

Please indicate which board you are interested in serving on. If you are interested in 
more than one board, please list them by preference by using numbers (1, 2, 3, etc.) 

Board of Adjustment Planning and Zoning Board 

Recreation and Parks Advisory Board Stormwater Advisory Committee 

 Require in-town residency or in the Town’s ETJ to be appointed to any volunteer board.

Name:  _____________________________________________________________________  

Address:  ___________________________________________________________________  

 __________________________________________________________________________  

Home Phone #:  Business Phone #:  ________________________  

Email Address:  

Employed By:  _________________________  Occupation:  __________________________  

Name of High School Attended:  _________________________________________________  

College or University Attended:  _________________________________________________  

How long have you been a resident of Winterville?  ____________  

Have you served on a board/commission of the town? (      ) Yes (      ) No 

If yes, please indicate which one(s):  ______________________________________________  

Current membership in organization and offices held:  ________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________________  

 __________________________________________________________________________  

Past membership in organizations and offices held:  __________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________________  

State why you feel you would be an asset to this board/commission.  ____________________  

__________________________________________________________________________  

__________________________________________________________________________

Signature:  ____________________________________  Date:  ________________________  

Please return to: Town of Winterville Town Clerk’s Office PO Box 1459 Winterville, NC 28590 
or email don.harvey@wintervillenc.com with the completed application. 

This information requested below is optional: 

Ethnic Group: Sex: ______ Female ______ Male 
________ African American 
________ American Indian US Citizenship: ______ Yes ______ No 
________ Asian or Pacific Islander 
________ Caucasian Birth Date: ____________________ 
________ Hispanic 

and guest services. 

Open Door Church/Member, CEASE/Member

Received 5/6/2020 DAH

73

mailto:don.harvey@wintervillenc.com


74



75



 

 

 

Town of Winterville 
Town Council 

Agenda Abstract 

 

Item Section: New Business 

 

Meeting Date: June 14, 2021 

Presenter: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager 

Item to be Considered 

Subject: American Rescue Plan Funds Discussion/Directives 

Action Requested: Adopt Resolution and Council Direction. 

Attachment: Resolution 21-R-061 and Information Handed out at the Meeting for Discussion Purposes. 

Prepared By: Terri L. Parker, Town Manager Date: 6/8/2021 

ABSTRACT ROUTING: 

☒ TC: 6/8/2021 ☒ TM: 6/10/2021 ☒ Final: tlp - 6/10/2021 

Supporting Documentation 

Staff will be prepared to have a discussion on the ARP funds the Town will be receiving and ask for Council 
direction on how these funds are to be expended. 

Budgetary Impact: TBD. 

Recommendation: Adopt Resolution and Council Direction. 

 

76



 Resolution No. 20-R-061 

 

RESOLUTION 
 

ACCEPTING AMERICAN RESCUE PLAN ACT (ARPA) FUNDS 
 

WHEREAS, the State of North Carolina will appropriate funding from the American Rescue Plan 

Act (ARPA) to fund recovery from the economic and health effects from the COVID-19 pandemic and 

ongoing recession; and 

WHEREAS, the North Carolina General Assembly will provide for the distribution of funds to 

eligible municipalities; and 

WHEREAS, before receiving a payment, the Town adopts this resolution affirming that the 

Town will spend the funding only on expenses as required under the American Rescue Plan Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville does hereby authorize the acceptance of funds through the 

American Rescue Plan Act and acknowledges funds will be issued via the State of North Carolina; and 

WHEREAS, the Town of Winterville will comply with all laws, rules, and regulations pertaining 

thereto; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Town Council of the Town of Winterville do 

hereby request American Rescue Plan Act funding to be distributed by the State of North Carolina and 

by adopting this resolution affirm that the revenue will only be used for the purposes prescribed in the 

American Rescue Plan Act guidance and any applicable regulations, for necessary expenditures 

incurred due to the public health emergency connected with the COVID-19 pandemic, budget and 

certify such to the State of North Carolina and the Town of Winterville Finance Director; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the Town Council will comply with the procedure created by 

the North Carolina General Assembly and the US Treasury Department to receive funds under the act. 

 
 
 

Adopted this the 14th day of June 2021. 
 
 
 
   
 Douglas A. Jackson, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
  
Donald Harvey, Town Clerk 

77


	00_20210614_Agenda
	06_01a_Proclamation_Abstractv2
	06_01b_Flag Day Proclamation
	06_01c_Father's_Day_Proclamation_2021
	06_01d_Boys_&_Girls_Club_Proclamation_2021
	07_01a_PH_Abstract_Brookstone_Phase_2_Rezoningv2
	07_01b_Kenneth_Smith_Rezoning_Application
	07_01c_Kenneth_Smith_Rezoning_Map
	07_01d_Kenneth_Smith_Rezoning_Legal_Description
	07_01e_Kenneth_Smith_Rezoning-Brookstone Ph2 Parcel 70650
	07_01f_Address Labels - Kenneth Smith Brookstone Ph 2 Rezoning
	07_01g_Staff Report - Kenneth Smith Property Rezoning
	07_01h_Ordinance_21-O-061_Kenneth_Smith_Property_Rezoning
	09_01a_Consent_Abstract_Minutesv2
	09_01b_Regular_Meeting_Minutes_20210510_DRAFT
	09_02a_Consent_Abstract_Green_Cert_of_Sat_Deed_of_Trustv2
	09_02b_Lina_Green_Cert_of_Sat_Deed_of_Trust
	09_03a_Consent_Abstract_Lynch_Cert_of_Sat_Deed_of_Trustv2
	09_03b_Lynch_Cert_of_Sat_Deed_of_Trust
	09_04a_Consent_Set_PH_Abstract_Set_PH_Carroll_Crossing_Rezoningv2
	09_04b_Carroll_Crossing_Sec_3_Rezoning_Application
	09_04c_Carroll_Crossing_Sec_3_Rezoning_Map
	09_04d_Carroll_Crossing_Sec_3_Rezoning_Legal_Description
	09_04e_Carroll_Crossing_Sec_3_Rezoning_Notice
	09_04f_Carroll_Crossing_Sec_3_Rezoning_Address_Labels
	09_04g_Carroll_Crossing_Sec_3_Rezoning_Staff_Report
	09_05a_Consent_Abstract_Budget_Amendment_20-21-4v2
	09_05b_Budget_Amendment_2020-2021-4
	11_01a_New_Abstract_2021-2022_Budget_Ordinancev2
	11_01b_Budget Ordinance 2021-2022v3
	11_02a_New_Abstract_BoA_Appointmentsv2
	11_03a_New_Abstract_Rec_Advisory_Appointmentsv2
	11_03b_20200506_Brothers_Amy_(Rec)
	11_03c_20201216_Jones_James_Godfrey_(PZ_Rec_BA)
	11_03d_20210503_Jones_Katrina_(HRB_Rec)
	11_04a_Abstract_New_ARP_Infov2
	11_04b_20210614_Resolution_21-R-061_ARP_Funds

	dhFormfield-1747035753:       x
	dhFormfield-1747043509: Amy Brothers
	dhFormfield-1747045278: 623 Bayberry Lane, Winterville, NC 28590
	dhFormfield-1747046554: 252.481.2064
	dhFormfield-1747047839: 978.308.2460
	dhFormfield-1747049229: aabrothers360@gmail.com
	dhFormfield-1747050377: AIM Global Enterprises, LLC
	dhFormfield-1747050930: Owner
	dhFormfield-1747052518: Northeastern High
	dhFormfield-1747052636: Elizabeth City State University
	dhFormfield-1747052865: 13 years
	dhFormfield-1747057177:  x
	dhFormfield-1747057757: Toastmasters International/Member, 
	dhFormfield-1747059611: 
	dhFormfield-1747059906: I'd like to add value to our
	dhFormfield-1747060117: community by contributing several years of experience in project management, event planning
	dhFormfield-1747061462: 05/06/2020


